
 

Page 1 of 96 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 14, 2018 

5:30 PM AT CEDAR FALLS CITY HALL 

 

 
 

Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: October 10 and October 24, 2018 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

2. Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat 

Location:  20.8 acre property at the north end of Lakeshore Drive 
Applicant:  Larry Hill, owner; Wingert Development, CGA, Inc. Engineer 
Previous discussion: September 12, 2018  
Recommendation: Recommend Approval  
P&Z Action Needed:  Review and make a recommendation to City Council 

New Business 

3. Central Business District Overlay Design Review – Lark Brewing 

Location:  312 Main Street  
Applicant: Darin Beck (Lark Brewing Owner)  
Previous discussion: None  
Recommendation: Recommend Approval  
P&Z Action Needed: Review and make a Recommendation to City Council 

4. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – Icon Donut 

Location:  917 W 23rd Street Suite A  
Applicant:  Kyle Dehmlow (Owner)  
Previous discussion:  None 
Recommendation:  Recommend Approval  
P&Z Action Needed:  Review and make a Recommendation to City Council 

5. Business Research District Site Plan Review – Rabo AgriFinance 

Location:  Lot 21, Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II  
Applicant:  Six Kids, LLC (Owner); Levi Architecture (Architect)  
Previous discussion:  None  
Recommendation:  Recommend Approval P&Z  
Action Needed:  Review and make a Recommendation to City Council 

Commission Updates 

 

1



 

Page 2 of 96 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* November 28th and December 12th Planning & Zoning Commission  
* Meeting November 19th and December 3rd City Council Meeting 

  

2



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
October 24, 2018 

City Hall Council Chambers 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, October 24, 
2018 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa. The 
following Commission members were present: Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul 
and Wingert. Hartley was absent. Karen Howard, Community Services Manager, Shane Graham, 
Planner II, Iris Lehmann, Planner I and Jon Resler, City Engineer, were also present. 
 
1.) Approval of the October 10, 2018 Minutes was missed and will be considered at the next 

Planning and Zoning meeting.  
 
2.)  The Commission moved to the first item of business, a Central Business District Design 

Review for a sign band at the LBL store at 321 Main Street. Chair Oberle introduced the item 
and Ms. Lehmann provided background information. She explained that the tenant would like 
to use a sequined wall panel to act as a sign band on the top half of the storefront. The wall 
panel has already been installed without proper permits or approval and upon contact from 
staff the tenant did submit a plan for review to address the violation. Ms. Lehmann provided 
renderings of the prior storefront and the current storefront and discussed the design criteria. 
She noted that the code does not address this type of material so this will set a precedent for 
future cases. Ms. Lehmann explained that the material section of the design review also 
requires that materials and textures of buildings in the surrounding area be considered. There 
are no buildings in the immediate surrounding, or in the downtown overlay, which use similar 
materials as part of their facade. Conversely, Ms. Lehmann noted that sign bands and signage 
in general are intended to be elements of a storefront that are unique and draw attention to a 
business, so it is not unusual to use creative approaches to create visual interest or use color 
or materials that differ from the primary and more permanent wall materials. City staff does not 
believe using a unique material on the sign band should be grounds for denial, unless there is 
evidence that the material will deteriorate quickly, will damage the façade of the building, or 
will be the predominate material on the façade. In this case, there is no evidence that the 
material is deteriorating, the installed panel can be removed without damage to the primary 
materials used for the façade of this building, and will not be used on areas of the façade 
outside the sign band. Staff feels that the proposal is not counter to the primary intent of the 
code section regarding materials. In terms of color, the installed wall panel does meet the 
design standards. Staff recommends approval for the submitted sign band but encourages 
discussion as this is a unique situation. It was noted that there has been correspondence 
received as a complaint. 

 
 Ms. Saul noted that she likes the project and feels it adds to the downtown. Mr. Arntson asked 

what staff would have done differently if the project had been proposed properly as opposed to 
being completed before approval. Ms. Lehmann stated that their stance would have been the 
same.  

 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to approve. Ms. Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul 
and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
3.) The next item for consideration by the Commission was a HWY-1 Site Plan Amendment for 

3



 2 

Raising Cane’s Signage. Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided 
background information. He noted that the Raising Cane’s project was approved by Planning 
and Zoning and City Council in August, however at the time of site plan submittal there was no 
plan for free-standing signage. The original plan was to have wall signage and signage at the 
main entrance in the monument sign. There have been changes made since then and they will 
not be using the main monument sign, but they would propose to use a free-standing sign at 
the northeast corner of the parking lot. Mr. Graham provided renderings of the proposed signs 
and noted that staff recommends approval as all requirements are met. 

 
 Mr. Holst made a motion to approve. Mr. Leeper seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul 
and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

 
4.) The next item on the agenda was the Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat, which was deferred 

to the next meeting as the petitioner is still working on the design of the stormwater 
management for the subdivision. 

 
5.) The next item of business was a HWY-1 District Site Plan Review for the Fleet Farm Retail 

and Convenience Store. Chair Oberle introduced the item and Mr. Graham provided 
background information. He explained that the proposal was brought before the Commission 
on October 10 for introduction and comment. He noted that it is located at the southwest 
corner of W. Ridgeway Avenue and Highway 58 and is approximately 50 acres. The site plan 
displays a main retail store along the west side of the property with three future retail stores to 
the north and a convenience store at the northeast corner of the property and two buildable 
lots south of the convenience store. He also displayed aerial renderings of the property, 
landscaping, open space, signage, stormwater management and building design plans, noting 
that all requirements are met. At the last meeting, staff recommended approval subject to 
several conditions: 

 
 1. All street, intersection, traffic control improvements and any additional right-of-way 

necessary to provide for safe and efficient traffic control and circulation to serve the long 
term needs of the subject development at full build out of the Property without causing 
undue traffic circulation and congestion problems along the adjacent public street corridors 
must be dedicated, constructed, and accepted prior to issuance of an occupancy permit for 
any portion of development on the Property. 

 2. The area shown as “Future R/W (right-of-way)” on the concept site plan shall remain as 
open space and shall not be developed with any structures, fences, buildings, hard 
surfacing, driveways or sidewalks. 

 3. If and when the property to the west ever redevelops with commercial uses, a 20-foot 
wide cross-access drive shall be constructed by the property owner at their expense within 
a 30-foot wide cross-access easement that will be established at the time of site plan 
approval. 

 4. A 5-foot wide sidewalk shall be installed along the entire frontage of the property along 
W. Ridgeway Avenue. The City will work with the developer to determine the best location 
for the easternmost sidewalk segment to avoid the wetland and provide for safe pedestrian 
access to the corner of Ridgeway and Hwy 58. 

 5. Sidewalks shall be installed throughout the interior of the development site to provide a 
continuous sidewalk network between all the commercial buildings on the site. 

 
Mr. Graham showed the proposed roadway improvements at full build out and stated that the 
roadway improvements would be completed in two phases. In general, the Phase I Roadway 
Improvements would include a roundabout at their main entrance west of Nordic Drive, 
upgrading the intersection of Nordic Drive to a fully signalized intersection where their 
entrance #2 is located, and installing a sidewalk from the northwest corner of their property to 

4



 3 

Nordic Drive. The Phase II Roadway Improvements generally include improvements from 
Nordic Drive to Highway 58, which include adding additional turn lanes, reconfiguring the 
signals at Highway 58, installing any retaining walls, reconstructing culverts, and completing 
the sidewalk along W. Ridgeway Avenue. Mr. Graham indicated that staff is also working with 
the developer to enter into a development agreement that would spell out all of the specific 
traffic improvements, timing of the improvements, and cost share.  He discussed the current 
staff recommendations and stated that staff recommends approval of the site plan at this time, 
subject to approval of a development agreement by City Council that details the public 
improvements necessary along adjacent public roadways to safely and efficiently 
accommodate the traffic generated by the proposed development at full build out and outlining 
the timeline and responsibility for construction of these improvements.   
 
Nicole Chimento, Midland Atlantic, 8044 Montgomery Road, Cincinnati, Ohio, came forward to 
explain that they have submitted updates and hope the Commission likes it. Mr. Holst asked 
about the roadway and sidewalk as it feels it is still up in the air. Ms. Howard noted that Jon 
Resler, City Engineer, was also present to answer any questions about the traffic study 
recommendations and the proposed road improvements necessary to support the proposed 
development. Mr. Holst asked Mr. Resler about traffic backup and any potential problems. Mr. 
Resler explained that this is a difficult situation as there is not an option to move Nordic Drive 
further from Highway 58. The Engineering Division has worked with the developer to 
accommodate the potential issues and the proposed solution of a roundabout at the main 
entrance and full access with a traffic signal at Nordic Drive should work to accommodate the 
traffic at full build-out of the development and also handle growth in traffic in the area for a 
significant amount of time. The traffic signal would be a temporary signal initially and additional 
work would be done in the future to widen the Ridgeway Avenue from Nordic Drive to Highway 
58 to accommodate the turn lanes identified in the traffic study. In 2022 the DOT has plans to 
make improvements to Highway 58 that will coincide with the City’s improvements on 
Ridgeway Avenue to accommodate traffic flow into the future. The rate of development in the 
area and the DOT’s interchange concept will also play a part in the how the proposed solution 
will work. 
 
Ms. Howard noted that a public meeting was held with neighboring property owners and 
businesses and staff has received positive feedback on the proposal to keep the intersection 
at Nordic full access with a signal.  The new retail store and gas station will create a significant 
increase in traffic, so the roadway improvements noted in the traffic report and as described in 
the City Engineer’s report will be needed to support the development of the property. 
 
Mr. Leeper asked what the approach will be if the traffic backup develops. Mr. Resler doesn’t 
believe there will be a great deal of issues, but the signal timing could be adjusted if needed.  

 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve. Ms. Saul seconded the motion. The motion was 

approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul 
and Wingert), and 0 nays.  

 
6.) Ms. Howard let the Commission know that the City is installing new agenda management 

software that will most likely be in use at the next meeting. There will be information coming in 
the near future regarding the changes and the steps for uploading packets.  

 
7.)  As there were no further comments, Mr. Holst made a motion to adjourn. Ms. Saul seconded 

the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 8 ayes (Adkins, Arntson, Giarusso, 
Holst, Leeper, Oberle, Saul and Wingert), and 0 nays. 

  
 
 

5



 4 

The meeting adjourned at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 
 

6



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

  Jon Resler, City Engineer 

 DATE: November 7, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat 
 

 
REQUEST: Request to approve the Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat 

 
PETITIONER: Larry Hill, Owner; Wingert Development, CGA, Inc., Engineer 

 
LOCATION: 
 

20.8 acre parcel at the north end of Lakeshore Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The petitioners are requesting approval of a preliminary plat that would create 6 residential lots 
on 20.8 acres of land. This subdivision includes the extension of Lake Shore Drive 
approximately 500 feet north of its current terminus. Lake Shore Drive will be dedicated as a 
public street. 
 
BACKGROUND 
This property has been zoned as agricultural since adoption of the Zoning Ordinance in 1970. 
The land is surrounded by R-1, Single Unit Residential zoning on the south and east sides. The 
current owner is interested in selling this land for future development. There is a current buyer 
with an offer to purchase the land contingent on the rezoning of the property to R-1, so it can be 
developed for residential uses. The application for rezoning is currently under review by the City 
Council. The preliminary plat is the next step in the development process. This staff report will 
summarize the proposed preliminary plat for this 20.8 acre parcel.    
 
ZONING 
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the rezoning from A-1 to R-1 
at the September 12, 2018 meeting. The City Council is considering the rezoning request and 
has deferred the final reading until preliminary plat is on the council agenda. The proposed 
subdivision will allow development of six single unit residential dwellings. The R-1 district 
requires a minimum lot area of 9,000 ft² with a minimum lot width of 75 feet. Minimum required 
building setbacks are 30 feet for front and side yards abutting a street, 30-foot rear yard setback 
and side yard building setbacks of not less than 10% of the lot width.  
 

7



ANALYSIS 
The proposed plat includes six residential lots and six outlots on the 20.8 acre property. All lot 
areas and lot widths satisfy the R-1 district standards of 9,000 square feet and 75 feet, 
respectively. The following is a summary of the areas and widths for each lot. 
 

Lot # Lot Width (ft.) Lot Area (sq.ft.) 

1 159 32,428 

2 145 31,383 

3 75 95,743 

4 75 79,274 

5 110 63,081 

6 385 90,505 

Outlot A 385 38,535 

Outlot B 180 72,588 

Outlot C 159 17,871 

Outlot D 163 27,615 

Outlot E 401 156,103 

Outlot F 401 120,463 

Outlot 1 Detention 22,381 

Outlot 3 Detention 20,852 

 
The plat shows a 30-foot front yard setback. The rear yard setbacks will be 30 feet and the side 
yard setback will equal 10% of the lot width. These building setbacks conform to the R-1, 
residential zoning district standards. 
 
The lots are intended to be developed with single unit detached dwellings. The lettered outlots 
(with the exception of Outlot A) identified on the plat encompass the sensitive land features 
including the floodplain district, wetlands, steep slopes and tree stands. Outlot A will be sold to 
the owner of Lot 14 in Lakewood Estates. The developer intends to convey the remaining 
lettered outlots to the owners of the abutting lots in the proposed subdivision. Outlot B will be 
held by the developer for another potential building lot if the floodplain maps are revised for 
this area in a manner that creates enough buildable space for a home in the future. The future 
use of the remaining outlots must be clearly defined as part of this platting process. A riparian 
easement will be established over the lettered outlots that encroach in the aforementioned 
sensitive areas. This is a perpetual easement for preservation purposes. The riparian 
easement will clearly define this area as a no disturbance buffer, the owners of these lots will 
not be permitted to make any temporary or permanent change in the character of the 
aforementioned sensitive features, no grading/fill, no structures or any other encroachment will 
not be permitted. 
 
The Park Ridge Estates plat includes a cul-de-sac extension of Lakeshore Drive. The middle of 
the cul-de-sac is approximately 600 feet from the north curb line of Lilliput Lane. This will be a 
31-foot wide street in a 60-foot public right of way. The cul-de-sac will have a 45-foot radius for 
90 feet of pavement which is large enough for city vehicles and fire trucks to make the 
turnaround. All lots will have access onto Lakeshore Drive. 
 
The International Fire Code allows up to 30 dwelling units in a residential development on a 
single access road or public street. Since the west half of Lakewood Hills and the Lakewood 
Estates subdivision already include 30 residential dwellings, a secondary access to this site is 

8



needed. Due to the rugged topography of the site providing a second means of access would be 
difficult and costly and would involve disturbance of sensitive environmental areas. However, 
there is an exception to this rule. More than 30 residential dwellings may be approved with only 
a single means of access, if these dwellings are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler 
system in accordance with the International Fire Code. The proposed homes in this subdivision 
will be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved by the City of Cedar Falls 
Building Department. Given the limited number of dwellings proposed, the difficulty of providing 
a second means of access and the addition of sprinkler systems, staff finds that making an 
exception to the secondary access rule is reasonable. 
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the development of each lot 
in accordance with the R-1 residential standards found in the Zoning Ordinance. The 
development of this subdivision is limited to single unit dwellings. There is a provision in the 
Deed of Dedication for residential sprinkler systems to be installed in each dwelling and the 
installation of a 4-foot wide public sidewalk across the entire frontage of any lot at the time when 
a new house is under construction.This document needs to be amended to reflect the revised 
preliminary plat and include the riparian easement. The final Deed of Dedication will be 
submitted during the final plat of this subdivision. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 
Utilities - City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, 
gas and communication services are available to the site at the north end of Lakeshore Drive. The 
developer is responsible for the construction of a properly sized water system from the 12” water 
main on north end of Lakeshore Drive to and throughout the proposed addition. Included in the 
installation are valves and water service stubs for the new lots. The preliminary plat shows two fire 
hydrants along Lakeshore Drive. The developer will be responsible for extending the utility services 
to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
Stormwater Management – There has been considerable discussion about management of the 
stormwater.  Neighboring properties owners to the south and east of the subject property have 
noted existing drainage problems in their subdivisions and problems with maintenance of the 
dam that impounds the stream and creates the lake that is part of the Lakewood Hills 
subdivision. The petitioner’s proposed subdivision is located downstream of the existing 
subdivisions to the south and east, so drainage from the proposed subdivision will not flow into 
those areas or the lake. However, during a large rain event stormwater run-off from the existing 
subdivisions is currently flowing uncontrolled off the end of Lakeshore Drive, across the 
petitioner’s property and down into the ravine near the toe of the dam that impounds the water 
that creates the lake. This uncontrolled run-off has created erosion in the stream bank near the 
outlet of the dam.  In addition a storm sewer pipe extends from the intake near the end of 
Lakeshore Drive across petitioner’s property and also outlets into the stream near the outlet of 
the dam. City staff and the developer have met with neighbors on a number of occasions to 
discuss options for designing the extension of Lakeshore Drive and the stormwater 
management facilities in the new subdivision in a way that might alleviate some of the existing 
problems. Correspondence from the neighbors and a response from the developer’s engineer 
are attached to this report for your review. In addition, the City received correspondence from 
the Iowa DNR, who was asked by the neighboring property owners to assess the condition of 
the dam in the context of new development being proposed in the area.  
 

9



The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a storm water management plan to the City and it has 
been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan meets the 
City’s subdivision requirements and also finds that the design will improve the drainage pattern 
that has developed over the years on this undeveloped parcel of land. Following is a summary 
of the proposed stormwater management system for the new subdivision: 
 

 Currently, the intersection of Lakeridge Drive and Lilliput is in a sump condition, which 
means that this intersection is at a low point and in a rain event water will collect and 
pond here until it drains into the street intakes to a 15” storm sewer.  In a large event the 
ponding will eventually get to a point where it overtops the high point in the street just 
north of the intersection. Currently, the water is then flowing uncontrolled down the hillside 
across the petitioner’s property to the stream at the bottom of the ravine downstream of 
the dam. With the new subdivision, the petitioner is proposing to grade the site so that the 
low point in the extended portion of Lakeshore Drive will be further to the north and water 
will flow to a new set of intakes at the north end of Outlot B. In addition, the existing storm 
sewer pipe that extends northeast down the hillside from the existing intakes at the end of 
Lakeshore Drive will be abandoned and a new storm sewer pipe will extend along 
Lakeshore Drive to connect with the intakes at the new low point in the roadway at the 
end of Outlot B. In a large event the water will pond at this new low point and flow into the 
detention basin in Outlot 2, which is designed to detain up to a 100-year rain event and 
release the water at a slower rate (the pre-development 2-year rate) into the stream at the 
bottom of the ravine. In a larger rain event the system is designed with an overland flow 
route from the new low spot through an overland drainageway that also empties into the 
detention basin in Outlot 2. This design will prevent the current uncontrolled overland flow 
of water from the existing subdivision through Outlot B that is currently eroding the land 
near the ravine and the dam spillway. 

 

 A cut off ditch along the south border of the plat (west of Lakeshore Drive) will collect and 
divert any on-site runoff from Lot 6 to the street to be captured by the intakes at the new 
low point north of Outlot B.  

 

 It should be noted that the western portion of the proposed plat will also drain to the new 
sump location at the north end of Outlot B and collect into the aforementioned intakes. 
The street and stormwater management system will be designed to direct a very large 
event into the planned stormwater basins. In such an event, approximately 1/3 of the 
water will be carried through an 18” storm sewer along the south side of Lot 1 to a new 
detention basin in Outlot 2; 1/3 of the water that is in the sump location in the street will be 
conveyed via an overflow channel located over the storm sewer to the basin in Outlot 2. 
This basin is designed to collect the storm water from the street and from Lots 1-3. The 
remaining 1/3 of the water in a 100-year event will overtop the sump location in the street 
and travel to the north into another detention basin in Outlot 1 located at the end of the 
cul-de-sac. Water from the detention basin in Outlot 1 will be released into the stream 
corridor at the north end of the subdivision.  

 

 Each detention basin is designed to collect the 100 year event with a 2 year pre-
development release rate. These detention basins will be maintained by the property 
owners of this subdivision. The storm water basins will provide a better way to collect and 
release the storm water than the existing uncontrolled flow. Therefore, the entire site will 
have a net discharge rate in compliance with the Cedar Falls stormwater detention 

10



requirements. The subdivision must be designed so that it is clear who is responsible for 
long term maintenance of the stormwater facilities with adequate access to the basins. 

 
Sanitary Sewer - The sanitary sewer will be extended to the north end of Lakeshore Drive to 
service each lot. Typically, the sanitary sewer must be extended to the limits of the plat, per the 
City’s subdivision ordinance in order to accommodate the future growth in the northwest portion 
of Cedar Falls. The developer’s engineer provided a preliminary sanitary sewer study to identify 
a future location of the sewer extension to the limits of the plat. It was determined that due to the 
steep slopes, floodplain and soil conditions, a sanitary sewer is not feasible through the north 
end of the Lakeshore Drive extension or along the easterly property line. Therefore, the 
proposed development of this property will utilize the existing lift station at the southeast corner 
of the property. The plan is to extend a future sanitary sewer to a new lift station in Ulrich Park, 
north of the proposed subdivision. This sewer line will continue through the north edge of this 
plat to service future growth in western Cedar Falls at some point in the future. A sanitary sewer 
easement will be established along the north side of the plat to allow for the future extension of 
the sanitary sewer.   
 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, waterlines, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond or escrow agreement with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial 
guarantee that all the improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
SUMMARY 
This preliminary plat was introduced at the September 12, 2018 Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting. Staff provided some introductory comments and wanted to seek input 
from the Commission and nearby residents. Concerns about the storm water runoff and the 
adjacent Lakewood Hills dam were presented by the neighbors. On September 17th, city staff 
met with several of the Lakewood Hills neighbors on site to review and discuss the proposed 
plat and condition of the dam. A representative from the Iowa DNR was present and conducted 
a dam inspection (see attached correspondence from the Iowa DNR). 
 
Since this meeting, the developer’s engineer redesigned the storm water drainage and detention 
for this subdivision. This design as described above routes the stormwater from the Lakeshore 
Drive and Lilliput intersection to the north into new storm sewers and detention basins. The 
existing storm sewer outlet, approximately 40 feet north of the dam spillway, will be abandoned 
and relocated 150 feet north of said spillway. Another concern addressed by the neighbors was 
the overland and uncontrolled runoff across the north side of 1009 Lakeshore Drive. This runoff 
creates an erosion problem into the east ravine that could interfere with the dam spillway. The 

11



proposed drainage plan will eliminate and redirect this overland runoff to a new detention basin 
that is 120 feet north of the spillway.      
 
The lots are located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain. Outlots B, C, D, E and F 
encompass the 100-year floodplain. Notice on the November 14 Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting was sent to the adjacent property owners on November 8, 2018.  
 
Attached to this staff report are the plat documents, photos of the dam spillway/erosion, 
neighborhood petition, email correspondence, and Lakewood Hills dam report from the Iowa 
DNR. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Park Ridge Estates 
Preliminary Plat, subject to the following comments: 
 

1. Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2. Amend the Deed of Dedication and include the riparian easement. 
3. Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
9/12/2018 

Acting Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Sturch provided background 
information. He outlined the plat details for the development of six residential 
lots and the sensitive areas of the floodplain, tree stands, steep slopes and 
meandering streams from the west and south to the Cedar River. He noted that 
the developer intends to maintain these sensitive areas in their natural state and 
that the storm water plan is being reviewed by the developer’s engineer. Staff 
would like to discuss the plat at this time and gather any comments for 
continued discussion at the next Planning and Zoning meeting.  
 
Mr. Adam Daters, Clapsaddle Garber Associates provided some comments on 
the proposed plat. Mr. Holst asked if there any consideration of a future 
extension of Lakeshore Drive. The commission had some concerns about the 
storm water run-off from this site into the ravine. Mr. Arntson asked about the 
elevation and drainage, and where the water will go. Mr. Daters provided 
answers to each inquiry.  
 
There were several nearby residents in the audience to comment on this 
preliminary plat.  
 
Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, noted concerns with storm water 
management and showed the debris that come through the pond whenever 
there is a greater amount of water flow. She also passed out pictures of the 
issues in the area when it rains.  
 
Lisa Sage, owner of the lot on corner of Lakeshore and Lilliput, asked for 
clarification about runoff from the south. Mr. Daters explained that they will be 
trying to push the water drainage further to the north.  
 
Ms. Saul recommended that staff walk the property to get a better view as 
opposed to just looking at a map. Mr. Leeper encouraged the developer to look 

12



for ways to ways to improve the drainage in the area. Mr. Arntson asked for 
clarification of the drainage of Lot 6 to ensure its draining properly. 
 
These comments will be addressed on the plat and presented at a future 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting. 
 

Vote 
11-14-18 

 

 

13



W
IN
D
IN
G
 R
ID
G
E
 R
D

NORTH RIDGE CIR

NORTHVIEW

LN

FALCON LN

WALTERS POND PL

R
ID
G
E
 D
R

Ulrich Park

SKYVIEW DR

E
A
G
L
E
 R
ID
G
E
 R
D

ALICE AVE

L
E
C
L
A
IR
 S
T

S
T
A
N
L
E
Y
 S
T

M
IN
N
E
T
O
N
K
A
 D
R

L
A
K
E
V
IE
W
 D
R

JUANITA AVE

LI
LL
IP
U
T 
LN

 

 

S
H
IR
L
E
Y
 S
T

 

M
A
G
N
O
L
IA
 D
R

M
A
G
N
O
L
IA
 D
R

HORIZON

DR

WYNN
EWOOD

 DR

WYNN
EWOOD

 DR

LAKE SHORE DR

S
O
U
T
H
 R
ID
G
E
 R
D

C
O
U
N
T
R
Y
 M
E
A
D
O
W
 LN

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
GLEN OAKS

DR

L
A
K
E

W
HITETAIL DR

HIGHWAY 57

R-1

R-2

S-1

R-1SF
R-5

C-1

R-1

RP
R-3

C-1R-1

A
-1 C
-2

R-1

C-2

A-1

R-1

1

Location
Map

Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
November 14, 2018

14



 
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 

16 East Main Street ● Marshalltown, Iowa  50158 ● Telephone 641-752-6701 ● Fax 641-752-2849 
Toll Free 800-542-7981 ● www.cgaconsultants.com 

 

November 2, 2018 

 

To: City of Cedar Falls City Council 

 City of Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission 

 Signatories of Lakeshore Hills LOA Letter of 9/22/18 

 

From: Adam Daters, PE – Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) 

 

Re: Lakewood Hills LOA Concerns and Proposed Remedies 

 

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) has worked with the developer, Brian Wingert, to develop 

a subdivision that meets the City’s subdivision ordinances and addresses the concerns 

addressed in the Lakewood Hills LOA Letter dated 9/22/18.   

 

We feel it is appropriate to address the items specifically, as presented in the letter, in order to 

ensure we have responded fully and completely.  The concerns and remedies presented by the 

Lakewood Hills LOA have been paraphrased for brevity, the full concern and remedies can be 

found in the original letter. 

 

Concern 1:  Inadequacy of Storm Sewer 

 

Response to Concern 1:  The intakes at Lakeshore Dr and Lilliput Ln are located in a sump at the 

intersection.  Runoff will pond in this location until it either drains into the intakes, or overtops 

the high point, located just north of the intersection.  During large rain events it is apparent 

that these intakes cannot handle the amount of runoff, and therefore, runoff ponds then 

overflows to the north in the general direction of the toe of the dam.  While storm sewer is 

generally not designed to convey large rain events, we agree that the current route of the 

overland flow is not ideal.  The large quantity of runoff over time is detrimental to the dam if 

not properly stabilized against this runoff. 

 

Concern 2: Maintenance Easement for Dam 

 

Response to Concern 2:  We agree that it is in the interest of the Lakewood Hills LOA to have a 

recorded easement to their benefit to access the dam structure. 

 

Concern 3: Increase in Flow to Existing Storm Drains at Lakeshore and Lilliput 

 

Response to Concern 3: The property Mr. Wingert would like to develop is downstream of 

these intakes.  Based on the topography it is unlikely that any runoff from the property in 

question is making its way to these intakes. Additionally, Mr. Wingert has agreed to install a 

cutoff ditch along the south side of the property to ensure runoff will be diverted downstream 

of these intakes. 

 

15



Remedy 1: Discontinuing Use of Existing Storm 

 

Remedy 1 Response: The developer has agreed to discontinue use of this storm, and re-route 

through a proposed storm network within the new development. 

 

Remedy 2: New Storm Discharge 

 

Remedy 2 Response: The developer has agreed to re-route this storm, direct it do a new 

detention pond which will outlet 250’ north of the existing outlet. 

 

Remedy 3: Reroute Overland Flow 

 

Remedy 3 Response: The developer has agreed to push the overland flow route further to the 

north, and route it through a detention pond.  This will assist in decreasing the off-site runoff 

and allow us to control the discharge velocity.  The detention will comply with the City’s 

subdivision ordinance, and by oversizing the detention pond, we are able to accommodate 

some of the off-site runoff and reduce the off-site runoff through the proposed subdivision.  

The overland flow will discharge approximately 200’ north of the existing overland flow 

discharge location. 

 

Remedy 4: Recorded Easement 

 

Remedy 4 Response: The developer is planning to grant an easement for the dam at no cost to 

the Lakewood Hills LOA. 

 

Remedy 5: Storm Water Report 

 

Remedy 5 Response: CGA has provided a copy of the Storm Water Report to the City of Cedar 

Falls and the Lakewood Hills LOA for their review. 

 

Remedy 6: Rip-Rap Installation and Tree Removal 

 

Remedy 6 Response:  The developer has shown a willingness to help the Lakewood Hills LOA 

who are representing the dam’s interest.  The developer has agreed to routing the runoff 

further north away from the dam, remove the existing culvert discharging near the toe of the 

dam and grant an easement at no cost.  The developer is actively discussing the tree removal 

and rip-rap installation with representatives of the Lakewood Hills LOA and is open to 

additional discussions that may be of benefit to both parties, but cannot commit to all requests 

in item 6 at this time until scope and final costs are available. 

 

 

 

 

 

16



City of Cedar Falls Comment #1: Pipe and Intake Size and How They Will Handle Storm Run-

Off 

 

Comment #1 Response: The proposed storm sewer system that leads to the east detention 

pond will consist of an 18” RCP (connecting to the existing 18” RCP) along with two 24” RCP’s 

that lead directly to the east detention pond. Two intakes will be placed at a designed sump 

location to carry the storm run-off to the east detention pond and they will be SW-509 (8’ open 

throat intakes) that can handle roughly 1/3 of the runoff in the 100-Year Rain Event. An 

overflow swale will be implemented to carry 1/3 of the runoff in the 100-Year Rain Event 

directly to the east detention pond. The last 1/3 of the water heading to the designed sump 

location will overflow (in the street) to the north detention pond. On the north side of the 

project, in the cul-de-sac, the design implements another SW-509 with a 24” RCP releasing 

directly into the north detention pond.  The SW-509 will capture roughly ¾ of the run-off in the 

100-Year Rain Event with ¼ of the runoff overflowing directly into the detention pond.  

 

City of Cedar Falls Comment #2: Overland Flow Routes and Characteristics 

 

Comment #2 Response: The overflow channel heading to the east will consist of a total length 

from top to top of 30’. The swale will be 3’ deep at typical sections will 3:1 side slopes and a  

   bottom width of 10’. In the 100-Year Rain Event, the swale will be 

   carrying roughly 0.5’ at 5 ft/s. The design will encompass rock check dams 

   to slow the water down and limit the erosion that the storm run-off will  

   generate. 

The overflow channel heading to the north detention pond will be a gentle depression in the 

grading and not have a defined channel as the overflow to the east. The amount of water in the 

100-Year Rain Event is of minimal concern due to the low flow rates bypassing the intake in the 

cul-de-sac.  

 

City of Cedar Falls Comment #3: Moving the Street Ponding to the North 

 

Comment #3 Response: The current design is to divert roughly 1/3 of the total runoff from the 

east detention pond to the north detention pond. This is accomplished by lowering the 

centerline elevation of the high point in the road to allow for less ponding in the designed sump 

location for the east detention pond. The information regarding the characteristics of the north 

ponding location can be seem in the response to Comment #1.  

 

    

 

 

 

  

 

 

17



Please contact me at 641-752-6701, or adaters@cgaconsultants.com if you have any questions.  

We hope this response addressed your concerns, and look forward to additional discussion. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 
Adam C. Daters, PE       

Project Manager       

 

 

Enclosure 

 

18



19



20



21



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 1

DEED OF DEDICATION
OF

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
CEDAR FALLS,

IOWA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That BJW Holdings, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal
office in Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting into lots and streets the land
described in the attached Certificate of Survey by ______________, a Professional Engineer and
Licensed Land Surveyor, dated _____ day of ________________, 2018, does by these presents
designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
the same to be known as:

PARK RIDGE ESTATES SUBDIVISION
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do
hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat.

EASEMENTS

The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its
successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the
transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service
or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said
services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.

RESTRICTIONS

Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and
their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in said subdivision be and the
same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully
and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each
deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may
hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with
each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:

1. Any dwelling that shall be erected on any lot shall have a minimum setback from the
front of the lot line as indicated on attached Final Plat. The minimum set back from each side lot
line is 10% of the lot width measured along the front of the lot or seven (7) feet whichever is
greater. All minimum setbacks will be required to meet or exceed R-1 Zoning.

22



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 2

2. No single family dwelling shall be constructed, permitted or occupied on any lot
herein having a square footage floor space, designed, intended, and constructed for living
quarters, which space shall not include cellars, attics, garages, breezeways, porches, stoops, and
other such non-living areas, of less than the following requirements:

A. 2,000 square feet for the main base of a single story, split-level or split-foyer houses.

B. 1,300 square feet on the first floor for story and one-half houses, or two story houses.
With a total for all floors not less than 2,600 square feet excluding the basement level.

3. Each single family residence shall have a minimum of a three stall garage with a
minimum of 850 square feet.

4. The owner(s) of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/hers lot or lots free of
weeds and debris.

5. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall
anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the
neighborhood.

6. All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall be paved with concrete.

7. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in said subdivision for
any purpose. Any auxiliary buildings or sheds must be built of the same or similar materials of
the residential structure on the lot and have the same roof pitch and design as said residential
structure.

8. No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from any lot which
shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any other lot. No exterior radio
antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the property. No satellite TV antenna or “Dish”
may be maintained, constructed or erected on any lot unless it is constructed in the rear yard and
at least twenty feet from any property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery and
landscaping. No dish larger than 24” will be allowed.

9. No dwelling on any lot of said subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is
completed and finished and the interior substantially completed and finished.

10. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what
is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in said
subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle can not return
to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall not

23



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 3

apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual
business.

11. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance
with the Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

12. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot,
except that two dogs or cats maximum, or other household pets are allowed and then only if they
are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes, such animals shall be kept under
control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept in compliance with applicable
zoning laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Dog runs or
dog kennels of any kind are prohibited.

13. No fencing shall be allowed on any Lot.

14. Each house must be constructed with a residential sprinkler system approved by
the City of Cedar Falls Building Department.

15. Tract A to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, for street purposes.

16. Outlot A shall be used for expansion of a yard in adjoining Lakewood Estates.
Outlot A must be conveyed to the owner of adjoining Lot 14, Lakewood Estates, Cedar Falls,
Black Hawk County, Iowa.

17. Outlots B, C, D, E and F are located in a flood plain and shall follow all federal,
state, and local ordinances regarding the same. Outlot C must be conveyed to the owner of Lot
1. Outlot D must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 2. Outlot E must be conveyed to the owner of
Lot 3. Outlot F must be conveyed to the owner of Lot 4

18. A four foot wide P.C.C. sidewalk four inches thick will be installed by the owner of
said lot during or immediately after the construction of the residence on any particular lot, or
within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the recorder of Black Hawk
County, whichever is sooner and that the sidewalk be across the full width of the lot and on
corner lots also. In the event that the City is required to construct the sidewalk, a lien or liens
may only be imposed against the lot or lots which require city construction and no others in the
subdivision.

19. No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on any lot in this
subdivision until the building plans, and plot plan, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and
showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, rear yard distances, front yard distances,
driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been approved in writing as to
conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and materials with
existing structures in the subdivision by a representative of BJW Holdings, LLC.

24



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 4

20. Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed. Panelized homes may
be allowed, but must meet the requirements of BJW Holdings, LLC, as stated in the previous
restriction.

21. The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to
keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting
their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick,
stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to
hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping
brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions. All
mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units, and shall not be placed between the curb
line and the property line abutting the lots.

22. The contractor or owner of any lot shall verify the depth of the sanitary sewer service
line serving said lot to insure minimum drainage will be met prior to any footing or foundation
work being completed. All sump pump lines must be buried and attached to the subdrain along
the back of the P.C.C. curbed street. No sump lines will be allowed to dump directly onto the
ground surface.

23. Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater
Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private
gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage easements. All
lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to maintain said easements
to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of overland
storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on record with the City of
Cedar Falls Engineer’s Office.

24. Each person or entity who is record owner of a fee or undivided fee interest in any
lot shall be a member of the Homeowners Association to be known as Park Ridge Homeowners
Association. This shall not be construed to include persons or entities whom hold an interest
merely as security for the performance of an obligation. There shall be one vote per lot and each
lot owner shall be a member of the Homeowners Association. Membership shall be appurtenant
to and may be not separated from ownership of any lot; ownership of such lot shall be the sole
qualification of membership.

The purpose of Park Ridge Homeowners Association shall be to own and maintain the
common area and green spaces of the development, and surrounding access and such other
activities set forth in the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association. Such
ownership and maintenance shall include, but not limited to, mowing, watering, include upkeep
of any underground sprinkler system, snow removal of common areas. Initially, the Developer,
BJW Holdings, LLC, shall perform the actual construction duties to establish the common area,
green spaces, entrance, and surrounding access area.

25



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 5

The annual dues for the Association shall initially be set at $300 per lot per year
beginning in ____________ 1, 2018. The Developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, shall be exempt
from any dues expense. The Association shall have the ability and authority to adjust annual
dues as it deems appropriate to carry out the maintenance duties as described above.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT

1. The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, and referred to as Tract A, will be brought to
City grade and that the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with
approved hard surface pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard
Specifications unless otherwise specified as per approved construction plans.

2. Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all
lots in the plat will be provided.

3. That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed.

4. That city water will be provided to all lots as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal
utilities.

5. That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public
Safety Department.

6. That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer.

7. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.

8. That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the
specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City
Engineer. In the event that the developer, BJW Holdings, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to
complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the
acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make
improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots. The undersigned, for
themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of
time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the
total costs thereof against the respective lots.

9. That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the
undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the
same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special

26



U:\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\BJW, LLC\deed of dedication.doc Page 6

assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments
to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law.

10. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the
subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Such required public improvements shall meet the following
requirements:

(a) Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner;
(b) Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials;
(c) Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of

said improvements;
(d) Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by Cedar Falls
Utilities;

(e) Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum
acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls
Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such
specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to time, and
approved by the city council.

The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City Engineer.

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 2018.

BJW Holdings, LLC

___________________________
Brian J. Wingert, Manager

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss

On this ____ day of ______________, 2018, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public
in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brian J. Wingert, Manager of BJW Holdings,
LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf of BJW
Holdings, LLC.

______________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

27



Photos Submitted by T. Stahl
9-12-18

Dam outlet pipe damage from extreme waterflow all directions

Erosion and structure damage from
extreme waterflow all directions

Erosion and structure damage from extreme waterflow all directions

Storm sewer outlet. The discharge competes with
flow of the dam overflow

Erosion at storm sewer outlet

28



Photos Submitted by T. Stahl
9-12-18

Location of the last storm sewer inlets at Lakeshore and Lilliput

The erosion on Outlot B. This rut grew 8’ by 8’ by 10’ this past week

8’ deep hole

29



30



31



32



33



From: Jerry Stahl 
To: Jon Resler 
Sent: Wednesday, October 24, 2018 12:11:56 PM 
Subject: Dam 
 
Mayor Brown, Mr. Resler, Mr. Sturch, Planning and Zoning Members and City Council 
Members; 
 
I am aware the city is doing a water study in regards to the potential development of the Park 
Ridge Preliminary Plat. Our association president and association member Jim Hancock have 
made me aware you will be providing them with a copy of this assessment for our association to 
have evaluated by our professional consultant Steve Jones. I am asking you to also do a micro 
study of the waters going into the back side of the Dam on our property. I would also like Mr. 
Jones to look at this study in the process of the decision making.  I am also requesting a 
extended time be allowed to have these studies evaluated when they are received before 
further decisions are made.   
 
I want to make sure everyone in the Cedar Falls City Hall and State is aware that our Dam is 
being damaged by incoming storm waters from surrounding areas and has been downgraded in 
safety. This is an important issue for the safety of the people living downstream from the Dam, 
the children who insist on playing in the waters downstream from the Dam and the railroad 
tracks downstream from the Dam. 
 
I have included photos taken at the meeting held at 
my home and the areas of concern on Monday, 
September 17th starting at noon with our 
Professional Consultant Steve Jones, Casey Walty 
from the DNR, Adam Daters the Developers 
Engineer, Brian Wingert the Developer, David 
Sturch Cedar Falls Architect, Bob Kressig Cedar 
Falls Representative, Jon Resler the Cedar Falls 
Engineer, Josh Balk the Dry Run Creek Advisor, 
Chris Borglum our Association President, Jim 
Hancock our Association Vice President and 
myself, Tamie Stahl present to view the damage 
with the hopes of concerned parties witnessing the 
problems and begin the problem solving process.  
 
I am trying to avoid conflict, deal with previous and 
existing damage and avoid future damage by 
looking for solutions and opportunities for 
cooperative action. I know this will take common 
sense good judgement and a cooperative, problem 
solving approach.  
 
I know our city intends to hold itself to a 
exceptionally high standard in problem solving 
when it comes to its citizens and finding solutions to our cities drainage and watershed issues. 
 
Respectfully 
Tamie Stahl 

 

 

34



 

 
 502 E 9TH ST, DES MOINES IA 50319  
Phone: 515-725-8200 www.IowaDNR.gov Fax: 515-725-8202 

10/24/2018 
 
 
 
JERRY AND TAMIE STAHL 
1009 LAKESHORE DR 
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613 
 
 
Project Description: Lakewood Hills Dam (IA02079) 
 
Dear Mr. and Ms. Stahl : 
 
We visited the Lakewood Hills Dam at your request on September 17, 2018.  
 
It appears that your property line is approximately 10-20 ft north of your house and runs along the top of the 
embankment. We have located an easement from 1980 that outlined who was responsible for the dam, and a 
modification agreement from 1992 that modified the responsible party to be only Lot 40 of Lakewood Hills. I have 
attached a copy of each of these documents. One point from this agreement states: 

2. That the Ulrichs agree that they and their successors and assigns of Lot 40, either in whole or in part, 
shall remain liable for maintenance of the Dam, as necessary, to keep the Dam in compliance with DNR 
criteria including, but not limited to, the outlet or water spillway from the Dam area, the concrete apron 
where water discharges into the creek and the necessary riprap on the Dam embankment and creek area 
next to the concrete apron and are responsible for removal of trees, shrubs and riprap along the 
downstream embankment. 

 
During the visit we discussed the erosion channel located approximately 100-ft downstream of the dam that is 
currently progressing to the west. This is located on property owned by Larry Hill and it appears to be located far 
enough away from the embankment that the safety of the dam is not impacted. No further action for this item is 
required at this time. 
 
During the visit we discussed concerns of increased water flows in to the lake. We have reviewed the design 
calculations for the 1980’s modifications and it appears that an assumption was included that future development 
would occur within the drainage basin. An approximately 235-ft wide auxiliary spillway with riprap protection is 
provided on the dam embankment. As it was designed, the auxiliary spillway is expected to flow approximately 
2.2-ft deep for a 100-yr storm (3.8 inches of rainfall in 2 hours), and 4.1-ft deep for the freeboard design storm (13 
inches of rainfall in 6 hours). Higher frequency storms were not included in these calculations, but the current 
frequent flow over the dam is consistent with the design. This dam was designed to flow in the auxillary spillway 
to reduce the flooding potential of the houses adjacent to the lake. 
 
Based on the current observations and deterioration since the 2015 DNR inspection, we have assigned a condition 
rating of Fair. No existing dam safety deficiencies are recognized for normal loading conditions; however, 
infrequent hydrologic events (extreme rainfall) may result in a dam safety deficiency.  It is critical that the listed 

35



recommendations in the attached inspection report be repaired in a timely manner to keep the dam from 
continued deterioration. 
 
Modifications of this dam beyond the scope of ordinary maintenance or repair will require approval from the DNR. 
This could include items such as dredging, impoundment lowering, and spillway outlet repairs. 
 
As per 567 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 73, the dam owner is responsible for all maintenance and repairs of 
the dam. If proper maintenance and repairs are not made to the dam, the DNR may issue an administrative order 
to ensure compliance. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 515-725-8330 or by email at Casey.Welty@dnr.iowa.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Casey R. Welty, P.E. 
Flood Plain Management and Dam Safety Section 
 
Enc.:  Iowa Natural Resources Council Order No. 80-165 
 1980 Easement 
 1992 Modification Agreement 
 9/17/2018 Inspection Report 
  
CC: Steve Jones, SEJ Consulting [email] 
 Jon Resler, Cedar Falls City Engineer [email] 
 David Sturch, Cedar Falls Code Enforcement Manager [email] 
 Chris Borglum, Association President [email] 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



Lakewood Hills Dam 
1 

 

Iowa DNR Dam Inspection 
Report 

 

conducted for 
 

Lakewood Hills Dam 

 

Dam inventory number 
IA02079 
 
Conducted on 
9/17/18 
 
Inspector 
Casey Welty 
 
Others present: 
Tamie Stahl, Dam Owner 
Steve Jones, Engineer 
Adam Daters, CGA, Engineer 
Jon Resler, Cedar Falls City Engineer 
David Sturch, Cedar Falls Code Enforcement Manager 
Brian Wingert, Developer 
Josh Balk, Black Hawk SWCD, Dry Run Creek Watershed Coordinator 
Bob Kressig, State Representative 
Chris Borglum, Association President 
Troy Love, interested landowner 
Jim Hancock, interested landowner 
  

52



Lakewood Hills Dam 
2 

 

Embankment 

Question Response Details 

Field Conditions 

Pool Level Normal Pool (+/- 6 inches) 

Ground Moisture Condition Dry 

Any changes in downstream land use 
that may impact hazard classification 
of dam? 

No 
 

Upstream Slope 

Slope appears too steep? No  

Slope has poor vegetative cover? No  

Slope contains trees and/or brush? Yes There is some brush growing along 
waterline. 

Cracks on the embankment slope? No  

Wave erosion at the water line? No  

Embankment has sinkholes, 
depressions, slides, or bulges? No  

Animal burrows on the embankment? No  

Photo of Upstream Slope 

 

     

Appendix 1      
 

Top of Dam 

Cracks, unusual settlement, or 
sinkholes along the top of dam? No  

Is the top width uniform and 
adequate? Yes  

Notes: 

 

Both the upstream and downstream 
shoulders have paved slabs with four 
foot deep toe walls to provide 
protection from headcutting in the 
event of overtopping flows. Despite 

53



Lakewood Hills Dam 
3 

some cracking, the slabs were in 
generally good condition. The owners 
repaired some small areas of cracked 
concrete. 

Photo of Top of Dam 

 

     

Appendix 2      
 

Downstream Slope 

Slope appears too steep? No  

Slope has poor vegetative cover? N/A The downstream slope is lined with 
riprap. 

Slope contains trees and/or brush? 
Yes 

There are numerous large trees 
covering the downstream slope of the 
dam. 

Embankment has sinkholes, 
depressions, slides, or bulges? No  

Cracks on the embankment slope? No  

Animal burrows on the embankment? No  

Downstream Slope Photo 

  

    

Appendix 3 Appendix 4     
 

Internal Drainage and Seepage 

Does the dam have internal 
embankment drains? No  

Was seepage observed through the 
embankment outside of designated 
drains? 

No 
 

  

54



Lakewood Hills Dam 
4 

 

Principal Spillway 

Question Response Details 

Description of spillway 60 inch diameter corrugated metal pipe with a drop 
inlet. Spillway outlets to a concrete apron. 

Is the inlet free from debris? Yes  

Are there trees and brush around the 
inlet? No  

Inlet photos 

 

     

Appendix 5      
 

Does the dam have a conduit 
spillway? Yes  

Is the trash rack and anti-siphon 
device in good condition? Yes  

Is riser/inlet in good condition? Yes  

Does the conduit appear structurally 
sound including water tight joints? Yes  

Are there signs of flow beneath or 
around the conduit? No  

Does the dam have an open chute 
spillway? No  

Is there erosion around the spillway 
outlet? 

Yes 

The concrete at the outlet of the 
spillway pipe has deteriorated 
significantly since our last inspection 
in 2015. There was a hole in the 
concrete apron approximately 6-ft by 
4-ft. The water flows out of the pipe, 
into this hole, and under the concrete. 
The soil is eroding under the concrete 
slab and under the end of the spillway 
pipe. Due to the flowing water, I was 
unable to determine how deep and 
how far under the pipe was eroded. 

Are there trees and brush around the 
outlet? No  

55



Lakewood Hills Dam 
5 

Outlet Photos 

   

   

Appendix 6 Appendix 7 Appendix 8    
 

Is there a low level drain? No  

  

56



Lakewood Hills Dam 
6 

 

Auxiliary Spillway 

Question Response Details 

The dam has an auxiliary spillway. Yes  

Description: An approximately 235-ft wide auxillary spillway with 
riprap protection is provided on the dam 
embankment. 

Is the spillway free of obstructions? Yes  

Is there an adequate cover free of 
trees and brush? No 

There are numerous large trees 
covering the exit slope of the auxillary 
slope. The trees are growing within 
the riprap area. 

Is the spillway free from erosion? Yes  

Auxiliary Spillway Photos 

 

     

Appendix 2      
 

  

57



Lakewood Hills Dam 
7 

 

Notes 

Subject Details 

We were contacted by the Ms. Stahl and were requested to visit the site to view some 
reported concerns with erosion near the dam and to discuss her concerns with a proposed 
development downstream of the dam. 

Erosion channel The erosion channel was approximately 8-ft wide, 8-ft deep, 25-ft long 
and was located approximately 100-ft downstream of the dam 
embankment. While this channel is getting wider as it progresses, the 
headcut of the channel is progressing to the west, parallel to the dam. 
This area of erosion does not appear that it impacts the safety of the 
dam due to its location away from the embankment. 

Erosion Channel 
Photos 

   
Appendix 9 Appendix 10 Appendix 11 

 

Tree Removal The downstream embankment face is lined with riprap to protect from 
overtopping erosion. There was a heavy cover of large trees and brush 
growing in the riprap. I discussed with Mr. Borglum that we recommend 
that trees and stumps be removed, backfilled with compacted fill, and 
riprap protection restored. We discussed that the “FEMA Technical 
Manual for Dam Owners, Impacts of Plants on Earthen Dams” 
provides recommendations for different removal options based on the 
location of the tree on the dam. The document suggests an appropriate 
size tree stump that could be sealed and remain in place. This ranges 
from 4-8 inches depending on the location. It does appear that a 
majority of the trees are larger than this. 

Rainfall Runoff Ms. Stahl and the local residents brought up concerns over the amount 
of overland flow water that occurs during large rain events. They 
brought up two main issues. First, they are concerned with the flow that 
comes down the street that isn’t captured by the storm sewer intakes. 
Secondly, they are concerned with the increased amount of water 
flowing into the lake due to the change in land use upstream of the 
dam. The residents were concerned that the dam overtops and that it 
seems like it overtops more frequently than it reportedly used to. We 
discussed that the dam was designed to overtop. 

Ownership and 
Easements 

Mr. Jones brought up concerns that the outlet of the spillway pipe and 
concrete apron may not be located on Ms. Stahl’s property. 

Dredging The landowners discussed dredging with Mr. Jones. He indicated that 
dry dredging would likely be their preferred option. 

  

58



Lakewood Hills Dam 
8 

 

Recommendations 

Question Response Details 

Perform the following ongoing maintenance: 

Exercise and perform required 
maintenance on gate. Not required.  

Mow or burn the vegetation on the 
dam. 

Perform on an 
ongoing basis. 

 

Clear vegetation from riprap areas. Perform on an 
ongoing basis. 

The brush should continue to be 
removed from the upstream 
water line. 

Remove debris from spillway inlet. Perform on an 
ongoing basis. 

 

Other (see notes):  

Monitor the following items that were detailed in previous sections of the 
report. Report any significant changes to the DNR. 

Seepage. Nothing noted 
at this time. 

 

Minor erosion. Nothing noted 
at this time. 

 

Minor embankment depressions or 
slides. 

Nothing noted 
at this time. 

 

Other (see notes):  

The following items need to be properly repaired/rectified: 

Clear trees and brush from 
embankment and spillway areas. Needs 

immediate 
attention. 

The trees and brush should be 
removed from the auxillary 
spillway and downstream 
embankment and the riprap 
protection should be restored. 

Backfill rodent burrows and initiate 
rodent control program. Not required.  

Repair and stabilize eroded areas. 
Needs 

immediate 
attention. 

The outlet of the spillway pipe 
should be stabilized to prevent 
continuing erosion. You may 
need to hire an 
engineer/contractor. 

Other (see notes):  

59



Lakewood Hills Dam 
9 

Employ an engineer/contractor experienced in design and construction of 
dams to: 

Perform a geotechnical evaluation to 
determine cause of slides and/or 
depressions. 

Not required. 
 

Evaluate and repair spillway 
structures. Not required.  

Develop plans and specifications for 
proper repair of the dam. 

In the next 1-2 
years. 

The outlet of the spillway pipe 
should be stabilized to prevent 
continuing erosion. Alternatives 
to the current outlet 
configuration of a concrete 
apron can be considered. 

Other (see notes):  

  

60



Lakewood Hills Dam 
10 

 

Overall Condition 

Question Response Details 

SATISFACTORY 
No existing or potential dam safety deficiencies recognized. Safe performance is expected 
under all anticipated loading conditions, including such events as infrequent hydrologic and/or 
seismic events. 
 
FAIR 
No existing dam safety deficiencies are recognized for normal loading conditions. Infrequent 
hydrologic and/or seismic events would probably result in a dam safety deficiency. 
 
POOR 
A potential dam safety deficiency is clearly recognized for normal loading conditions. 
Immediate actions to resolve the deficiency are recommended; reservoir restrictions may be 
necessary until problem resolution. 
 
UNSATISFACTORY 
A dam safety deficiency exists for normal conditions. Immediate remedial action is required 
for problem resolution. 

Overall Rating of Dam Condition Fair 

  

61



Lakewood Hills Dam 
11 

 

Media 

  
Appendix 1 Appendix 2 

  
Appendix 3 Appendix 4 

  
Appendix 5 Appendix 6 

62



Lakewood Hills Dam 
12 

  
Appendix 7 Appendix 8 

  
Appendix 9 Appendix 10 

 
Appendix 11 

 

63



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: November 7, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Central Business District Overlay Design Review for 312 Main Street 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve a new overhead door on the back of 312 Main Street  
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Darin Beck (Lark Brewing Owner); Levi Architecture (Contractor) 

LOCATION: 
 

312 Main Street 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
312 Main Street is currently going through a remodeling project for its new tenant, Lark Brewing. 
The project includes new interior renovations and the addition of an overhead door to the back 
of the building. This overhead door will be used for moving in brewing equipment and for the 
delivery and shipping of product. See images below of the current back of 312 Main Street and 
what is being proposed. 
 

Current                            
 
 

Proposed 

64



BACKGROUND 
This item requires review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council since 
this property is located within the Central Business District (Section 29-168). The downtown 
district requires a building site plan review (i.e. design review) for any “substantial improvement” 
to a building, including the addition of an exterior door. A substantial improvement to properties 
in the CBD Overlay is defined in Section 29-186(c) and reads as follows: 
 

“Substantial improvement" includes any new building construction within the overlay 
district or any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the 
exterior appearance of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or 
doors or altering the color or exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, 
changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of existing facade materials will be 
considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any new, modified or 
replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing 
building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance.” 

 
ANALYSIS 
This property is located in a C-3, commercial zoning district, and falls within the Central 
Business District Overlay. As noted above, all substantial improvements to structures within the 
overlay district shall be reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council. The 
following is an evaluation of the project: 
 
1. Proportion: This section requires that the relationship of width and height of windows and 

doors of adjacent buildings be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. The proposed overhead door is 6 feet wide by 7 feet tall. This type of door 
that supports business operations on the back of a commercial building is common. 
This criterion is met. 

 
2. Roof shape, pitch and direction: The roof of the building is not being altered. This criterion 

does not apply. 
 
3. Pattern: The applicant is proposing to add a new opening to the back of 312 Main Street to 

support the new tenant’s business operations. This opening will face the alley and 
will be used for the delivery and shipping of product. The back of the buildings along 
the alley have no distinct pattern of solid surfaces and openings. This criterion is met. 

 
4. Building Composition: This section requires the design review to address flat, continuous, and 

overly long building walls. Adding a door to the back of the building will create an 
additional visual break. This criterion is met. 

 
5. Window and transparency: The size, proportion, and type of windows on the building’s 

storefront are not changing. The proposed overhead door to the back of the building 
will have two glass lite kits. There are few to no windows in the building walls along 
the alley. The windows on the proposed door will add an element of transparency to 
an area where none previously existed. This criterion is met. 

 
6. Materials and texture: The proposed sectional overhead door will be metal. The existing vinyl 

siding on the back of the property will remain or be replaced if required by 
construction. The metal material for the overhead door is appropriate in the context 

65



of the back of the buildings along the alley. This criterion is met. 
 
7. Color: The existing vinyl siding on the back of the structure will remain or will be replaced with 

a matching color if required by construction. The proposed sectional overhead door 
will be white. The proposed door will blend in with the white vinyl siding that will 
surround it. This criterion is met.  

 
8. Architectural features: The architectural features of the building are remaining the same. This 

criterion does not apply. 
 
9. Building Entries: This section pertains to pedestrian entries into a building. The entry into the 

building will not change. This criterion does not apply. 
 
10. Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting. This criterion does not apply 

for this review 
 
11. Signage: The new tenant will replace the existing façade’s wall signage with signage for 

Lark Brewing. The new signage will be similar in size and location. The new signage 
will not materially change the appearance, shape, or configuration of the existing 
building. Review by the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council is not 
required for this item (Section 29-168 (f)(2)) This criterion does not apply.  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Vote 
11/14/2018 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the proposed addition of an 
overhead door to the back of 312 Main Street. 
 
Attachments: Letter of intent from property owners 
 Additional details about proposed work 

 

66



Iris Lehmann 
Planner I 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
November 2, 2018 
 
Re: Lark Brewing – Rear Elevation Overhead Door 
       312 Main Street  
       Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

Ms. Lehmann, 
  
The scope of work at the above-mentioned project includes the addition of a new 
6’x7’ sectional overhead door, color white. The door will have two glass lite kits. 
Existing vinyl siding to remain or be replaced if required by construction and will be a 
matching color. The reason for adding the door is to create an opening large enough 
to move in brewing equipment/tanks. It will also be used for delivery/shipping of 
product.       
 
Levi Architecture submits this proposal on behalf of Lark Brewing Owner, Darin Beck 
(darin@barmuda.com). Please feel free to contact us at your convenience if you 
have any questions regarding this submittal.  
 

 

Respectfully, 

 
 
Dan Levi, AIA 
Levi Architecture 

 

1009 technology parkway
p.o. box 1240
cedar falls, ia 50613

319.277.5636 o 
319.277.5639 f  

leviarchitecture.com
67



Lark Brewing
Existing Rear Elevation
312 Main Street - Cedar Falls
11.2.18

68



Lark Brewing
Proposed Rear Elevation
312 Main Street - Cedar Falls
11.2.18

New 6'x7'
OH Door

69



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: November 6, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Facade review of property in the College Hill Neighborhood Overlay 
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
New signage and awnings on storefront 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Kyle Dehmlow (Owner); Signs & Designs, INC (Contractor)  

LOCATION: 
 

917 W. 23rd Street Suite A 

 
PROPOSAL  
The applicant is requesting a façade review for a new 
projecting sign and awnings at 917 W. 23rd Street 
Suite A to advertise the building’s new tenant, Icon 
Donuts. See image of the proposed projecting sign to 
the right. 917 W. 23rd Street is located in the College 
Hill Neighborhood Overlay.  
 
BACKGROUND 
The College Hill Neighborhood district requires a site plan review (i.e. design review) by the 
Planning & Zoning Commission and the City Council for any substantial improvement to an 
exterior façade. A substantial improvement to properties in the College Hill Neighborhood is 
defined in Section 29-160 (c) and includes: “any new, modified or replacement awnings, signs 
or similar projections over public sidewalk areas.” Typically signage is not part of the review 
process unless the review is mandated by Ordinance Section 29-160. In this case, when a new 
projecting sign is installed that overhangs the public right-of-way the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and City Council must review and approve the request (29-160(g)(5)).   
 
ANALYSIS 
The projecting sign will be placed above the store’s entrance on W. 23rd Street and under the 
existing Greenhouse Kitchen sign. The proposed sign will be constructed out of aluminum, will 
not be lighted, is roughly 11 square feet in size, and will be elevated 13 feet above the sidewalk.  

70



City code Section 3-59 requires projecting signs 
over the right-of-way to have a minimum 
clearance of 10 feet. The size and placement of 
the proposed sign meets city code and height 
clearances.  
 
The proposed awnings will go on the east and 
south side windows of the building and extend 
18 inches over the right-of-way. Each awning is 
made with aluminum tubing and covered with 
Ferrari awning vinyl. The bottom of the awning 
will be 8 feet off of the sidewalk. The height and 
placement of the proposed awnings are 
consistent with the other awnings on this 
building and along this street.  
 
The material currently covering the windows, seen in the image above and those attached, will 
be taken down once the renovation of the interior of this building is completed. 
 
If approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission, this item will be placed on the next 
regularly scheduled City Council meeting. If City Council approves this request, permits will be 
issued for the new projecting sign and awnings.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
No comments. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion/Vote 
11/14/2018 

 

  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the submitted facade plan 
for 917 W. 23rd Street Suite A. 
 
Attachments:   Letter of intent from property owners 
 Additional details about proposed work 

 

71



Icon Donuts
917 West 23rd Street, 
Suite A
Cedar Falls. Iowa 50613

Work Being done:

A) New unlighted projecting sign made out of aluminum 26” x 60” that will  be mounted to 
the wall under the existing Greenhouse Kitchen sign. The sign will be 13’ to the bottom of 
the sign. 

B) Awnings over 3) windows Each is 32” x 8’ wide and projects 18” from the building. Each 
awning is made with aluminum tubing and covered with Ferrari awning vinyl. The bottoms 
are 8’ off the sidewalk.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Icon- Owner Contact: Kyle Dehmlow 319-415-3554
Sign Contractor contact: David Schachterle Signs & Designs, Inc. 319-277-8829

Sincerely

David Schachterle

5600 Nordic Drive   Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

10/30/2018

72



73



 

Proposed 

 

Existing 

74



75



 

76



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: November 8, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Six Kids, L.L.C. (Jim Mudd, Jr.) Office Project in Cedar Falls Technology Park 
Phase II 

 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site plan review and approval for a new office building for Six Kids, L.L.C. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Six Kids, L.L.C. (owner); Fehr-Graham (engineer); Levi Architecture (architect) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Lot 21 of Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
Six Kids, L.L.C. is proposing to construct 
and own a new one-story, 17,386 square 
foot professional office facility on Lot 21 
in Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II. 
The building will be the new home for 
Rabo AgriFinance, which currently leases 
a smaller office space from the owner in 
another building that they own in the 
technology park. The site is 3.03 acres in 
size with direct access from Technology 
Parkway.   
 
BACKGROUND 
This property is included in the Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II subdivision that was 
approved by the City in 1998. Currently, four of the initial 23 platted lots remain available for 
development (including Lot 21). On October 1, 2018, City Council approved a development 
agreement with Six Kids, L.L.C., which transferred ownership of Lot 21 to allow for the 
construction of the proposed office building. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The property is zoned BR, Business/Research District, which is intended to provide for the 
establishment of planned business, office, and research buildings or facilities. The ordinance 
also requires detailed site plan review prior to approval in order to ensure that the development 
site satisfies a number of basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details such as parking, open 

77



green space, landscaping, signage, building design and other similar factors help to ensure 
orderly development in the entire area. Following is a review of the zoning ordinance and/or 
deed of dedication requirements for this property: 
 

1) Use: The site plan shows a 17,386 square foot business/office use building. The use is 
permitted in the B/R District and is compatible with other office buildings within the Cedar 
Falls Technology Park. Use is allowed and it suitable for the existing land use plan. 
 

2) Building Location: The required minimum setbacks in the B/R District (building and parking 
lots) are 30 foot for the front yard, 20 foot for the side yard, and 20 foot for the rear yard. 
The site plan shows an approximate 90-foot front yard setback, 20.11 and 20.34-foot side 
yard setbacks, and a 32.73-foot rear yard setback.  One new access onto Technology 
Parkway is being shown at the northwest corner of the property. Building setbacks are 
satisfied. 
 

3) Parking: The parking requirement for a business/professional office is one parking space 
for every 300 square feet of gross floor area. The proposed building is 17,386 square feet 
in area, thus requiring a total of 53 parking spaces. The proposed plan offers 116 parking 
spaces, including 5 handicap accessible parking spaces. This is 63 more parking spaces 
than what is required. The developer (Six Kids, L.L.C.) wants to ensure that excess 
parking beyond the minimum requirement is provided as this building could have up to 90 
employees. The parking stall dimensions are 9’ x 20’ with 24’ wide aisle/access routes. 
The amount and dimension of the parking stalls and drives are met. 

 

4) Open Green Space: This BR, Business/Research District requires that open space be 
provided at the rate of 20% of the total development site area.  The development site area 
is approximately 3.03 acres (132,236 sf.) which requires 26,448 square feet of open 
space.  The open space being provided on the site plan is 65,987 square feet, which is 
49.9% of the site. Following is a summary from the landscape plan that details how this 
provision is met.   
 

Development Site 132,236  

Required Open/Green Space 26,448 20% 
Provided Open/Green Space 65,987 49.9% 

 

The open green space exceeds the minimum requirement. 
 
5) Landscaping: The landscaping provision is split into three different components that 

include development site plantings, parking lot trees, and street trees. The development 
site standards require 0.02 points per square foot of lot area, exclusive of required setback 
areas. The parking lot plantings require one overstory tree for every 15 parking stalls. 
These plantings must be distributed throughout the parking lot instead of being confined to 
one area.  Finally, street trees must be planted at the rate of 0.75 points per linear foot of 
street frontage. Following are the requirements for the site in question and what is 
proposed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

78



Landscaping 

Type Required (pts.) Provided (pts.) 

Development Site 2,060 pts. 2,075 pts. 

Street Trees 177 pts. 450 pts. 

Parking Lot trees 8 13 

 
 
As detailed in the table, trees are required in the vehicular use area at the rate of one tree 
per 15 parking spaces. 8 trees would be required, and 13 trees are provided to meet this 
requirement. Along with the parking lot trees, there are trees located along the street 
frontage, with shrubs and additional trees being located around the building. Landscaping 
requirements are met. 
 

6) Building Design: The BR, Business/Research District requires a design review of various 
elements to ensure compatibility with surrounding buildings and compliance with building 
standards. These are noted below with a review on how each element is addressed. 

 

 
 

  

 

Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations 

of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building; the relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent 
buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
 

The Cedar Falls Technology Park offers a wide variety of business 
and office buildings that have been constructed over the years, 
including a 50,000 sf. two story corporate office, a combination 
office/warehouse facility, a data center, an 8,000 sf. split level office 
with walk out access, and several other unique office buildings. The 
proposed Six Kids, L.L.C. building will be a 17,386 square foot 
single story structure. The height of the proposed building is 17 feet 
to the roof line. The buildings in closest proximity (Mudd Office, 
Principal Financial and TEAM Technologies #1 and #2) have 
similar flat roofs with similar building heights. There is generous 
window coverage with storefront window systems and a prominent 
main entrance along the front of the building similar to other 
corporate offices in the area.  
 

 

Building Rendering 

79



Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, 

pitch, and direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building. 

 

The proposed office building is one story in height and has a flat 
roof. As noted previously, there is a myriad of different roof types, 
slopes and directions within the Cedar Falls Technology Park. The 
buildings in closest proximity (Mudd Office, Principal & TEAM) have 
similar low/no pitch roofs, making this building compatible with the 
surrounding area. 

 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front 

facade and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. 
This pattern of solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 
 

 The proposed building is compatible with other existing 
business/office buildings constructed in the Cedar Falls Technology 
Park. The building was designed with a mix of precast concrete 
panels, aluminum composite panels, corrugated metal panels, 
Nichiha ribbed paneling, and glass/glazing (windows). The pattern 
of windows, precast concrete panels that extend to the roof line 
over the doors and horizontal Nichiha paneling provide a 
contrasting pattern and create visual interest along the front of the 
building. Extensive window coverage along the front façade create 
an open, transparent, and inviting appearance. The rear and sides 
of the building also include differing sizes of precast panels, along 
with Nichiha panels and windows spaced in a manner that avoids 
long stretches of blank walls. 

 
Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and 

textures on the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the immediate area shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration 
shall be considered compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in 
the context of other buildings in the immediate area. 

 
 The deed of dedication for Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II 

indicate that structures established on a lot must use only high 
quality materials such as brick or stone masonry, site-cast, pre-cast 
or prefabricated concrete, glass, natural or polished stone, or a 
compatible exterior insulation finish system (EIFS) for exterior finish 
materials. 

 
 The general design of the building includes a combination of 

precast concrete panels, Nichiha ribbed paneling, aluminum 
composite panels, corrugated metal panels, and glass/glazing 
(windows). The Nichiha ribbed paneling features a metallic finish 
that reflects light and creates the appearance of brushed, precious 
metals. Its ribbed texture also adds interest and variation to the 
building design. 

 
80



 The north elevation facing Technology Parkway will be made up of 
approximately 42.3% glass, 31.5% Nichiha, 23.9% precast 
concrete panels, and 2.3% aluminum composite panels. The east 
and west side elevations are approximately 46% - 49% Nichiha, 
20% - 26% glass, 15% - 21% precast panels, 8% aluminum 
composite panels, and 2% corrugated metal panels. The rear of the 
building will be comprised of Nichiha (43.2%) and precast panels 
(39.5%), along with windows (16.3%).  

 
 Many of the surrounding buildings in the Cedar Falls Technology 

Park utilize material combinations of precast concrete paneling, 
brick, stone and glass. Nichiha, which is a main component of this 
building, is a fairly new building product that is being utilized on 
more and more buildings in Cedar Falls. The Nichiha panels are 
fiber cement panels that are manufactured from a pressed, 
stamped, and autoclaved mix of Portland cement, fly ash, silica, 
recycled products, and wood fiber bundles. These panels can then 
be made to look like wood, metal, stone, and brick, while providing 
a simpler installation system than those traditional materials. Staff 
believes that the materials proposed for this building comply with 
the intent of the subdivision which indicates that quality materials 
will be used on the building. 

 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 

buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. 
 

The color of the proposed Nichiha ribbed paneling is “Gunsmoke”, 
which is found within its metallic series. The color appears to be 
gray in nature, and features a metallic finish. The precast concrete 
panels are light tan in color, which will provide a nice contrast with 
the gray Nichiha ribbed panels. The aluminum and metal panels will 
mainly be gray, but there is a small section of aluminum paneling 
near the front entrance that are orange in color, as that is a color 
component in its corporate logo.  
 
Many of the existing buildings in this area utilize building colors that 
include browns, tans, grays, and reds. The building directly to the 
east is designed with a similar darker gray color scheme, so this 
building would not appear to be out of character with the area. 

 

Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, cornices, 

entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the immediate 
area, shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not 
intended that the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those 
features should be regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale of details 
that would be appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 
 

Architectural features of the office building include two raised 
precast panels that extend over the roof line above the doors on the 
front of the building. Also, there is a raised roof section in the 
middle of the building that will have windows installed to allow 81



natural light to enter the main area of the building from overhead. In 
addition, aluminum composite paneling extends frontward off of the 
building at the main entrance to provide additional depth to the 
building.  
 

Building Design Summary - The proposed office building design is compatible 
with the other business/office buildings located within the Cedar Falls 
Technology Park. The use of precast concrete panels, glass and Nichiha 
paneling likewise replicates the exterior finish materials that are found on 
other surrounding buildings. The proposed windows and doors are “standard” 
for existing office buildings in this area. Overall, the design of the building 
fits the intent of this BR District and complies with the Deed of 
Dedication. 

 
7) Trash Dumpster Site: The site plan shows a proposed dumpster location at the end of the 

west parking lot off of the southwest corner of the building. This enclosure will be made of 
split face block that will be painted to match the color of the building. The enclosure will 
measure 12’ by 10’ and will be 8’ in height. It appears to be a typical enclosure that will 
adequately screen the dumpster. Dumpster enclosure design and location is 
acceptable. 

 
8) Signage: The Deed of Dedication for Cedar Falls Technology Park Phase II allows for one 

monument sign on the premise in the front yard area of the property. The monument sign 
shall not exceed 60 square feet in area and must include the property address. Wall signs 
shall not exceed 10% of the wall area of any single wall and are limited to two wall 
surfaces.   
 

The site plan shows a monument 
sign just west of the drive access 
into the property. Sign details 
have been submitted showing a 
32 square foot sign area. The 
structure supporting the sign will 
use the same precast panels as 
used on the building along with a 
metal coping cap. A wall sign is 
shown on the elevation drawing and rendering and will be located over the main entrance 
to the building near the northwest corner of the building. It would appear that the proposed 
wall sign will be limited to 10% of the wall area. Signage plan is acceptable, subject to 
detailed review with a sign permit. 

 
9) Sidewalks: There are no external sidewalks located adjacent to this property, or in the 

general area. There are sidewalks shown along the exterior of the building to allow for 
employees or patrons to get to or from the entrances/exits of the buildings.   

 
10) Storm Water Management: The site plan identifies a storm water detention basin located 

at the front of the property near Technology Parkway. A smaller basin is also shown 
behind the building near the southeast corner of the property. This basin will capture 
water, and then pipe it to the main detention basin at the front of the property. The water 
will then be released through a pipe to an existing storm sewer that is located at the 
northeast corner of the property along Technology Parkway. City engineering staff has 82



reviewed the storm water plans and have confirmed that all storm water, grading and 
SWPPP items are in order. Stormwater Management Plan has been reviewed and 
approved by the Engineering Department. 

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
Technical review on October 17, 2018 noted only a couple of items all of which have been 
addressed.  
 

Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available to the site in accordance 
with the service policies of Cedar Falls Utilities. The property owner/contractor is responsible to 
extend all utility services to the building. These utility extensions will be reviewed by CFU 
personnel as part of the building plan review. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The introduction of this site plan is for discussion and public comment purposes. If the P&Z 
Commission is comfortable with the submitted site plan, it is their decision on whether to forward 
for additional P&Z Commission review on 11/28 or to approve the site plan on 11/14. The 
Community Development Department has reviewed this site plan and would recommend 
approval, subject to the following comments: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
11/14/2018 

 

Vote 
11/14/2018 

 

 
Attachments:   

Location map 
Site plan, landscaping plan and other site related plans 
Exterior renderings 
Signage plan 

83



S Prairie
Lake

Dry
Run

Cre
ek

( S
)

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Technology
Park

Industrial
Park

Central
River AEA

Prairie
Lakes Park

Technology Pkwy

Pr
inc

eto
n A

ve

L e
xi n

gto
nB

lvd

C ha ncel lor Dr

Richmond St

Scranton St

Columbia St

Concord St

Saratoga St

Camden St

Commerce Dr

Performance Dr

Waterway Ave (Planned)

Cy ber Ln (Planned)

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

R-4

M-1
M-1

PC-2

HWY-1

BR

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission
November 14, 2018

Rabo AgriFinance
BR District Site Plan Review

W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce
da

rH
eig

hts

Dr

Pra iriePkwy

WRidgeway Ave

University Ave

Waterloo Rd

Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

Vikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

rs e
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

84



Rabo AgriFinance Site Development 

Description of Proposed Work and Use 

 

Project consists of construction of a new building with hard surfaced parking lot, traditional 

detention basin, site monument, and associated utilities. Soil disturbing activities will amount 

to topsoil stripping, site grading, utility construction, fill placement, building construction, 

parking lot construction and topsoil hauling and spreading. 

Building will be used as an office building for professional services housing 89 persons. A small 

monument sign at the west side of the curb cut is proposed at 4’ tall and 8’ wide of masonry 

and internally light signage. 

85



Ó 

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

1-800-292-8989
www.iowaonecall.com

Date

 All 

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me
or under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly
licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa.

        Nathan P. Kass, P.E. & P.L.S.
License Number 18659
My license renewal date is December 31, 2019.
Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

18659
P. KASS
NATHAN

IOWA

NG
INEER & LAND

SURVEYOR

E
.F ORP

86



M

E

N

S

W

O

M

E

N

S

J

A

N

.

A

/
V

M

O

T

H

E

R

W

E

L

L

N

E

S

S

D

A

T

A

M

E

C

H

.

C

O

P

Y

/
P

R

I
N

T

M

A

R

K

E

T

I
N

G

L

A

N

D

L

O

R

 
S

T

O

R

.

H

A

L

L

W

A

Y

T

R

A

I
N

I
N

G

C

A

F

E

C

O

N

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 
R

O

O

M

A

P

P

R

A

I
S

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

L

E

A

G

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

R

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

O

F

F

I
C

E

O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

C

O

N

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

E

N

T

R

Y

I
N

T

E

R

V

I
E

W

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 
87



M

E

N

S

W

O

M

E

N

S

J

A

N

.

A

/
V

M

O

T

H

E

R

W

E

L

L

N

E

S

S

D

A

T

A

M

E

C

H

.

C

O

P

Y

/
P

R

I
N

T

M

A

R

K

E

T

I
N

G

L

A

N

D

L

O

R

 
S

T

O

R

.

H

A

L

L

W

A

Y

T

R

A

I
N

I
N

G

C

A

F

E

C

O

N

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 
R

O

O

M

A

P

P

R

A

I
S

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

L

E

A

G

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

R

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

O

F

F

I
C

E

O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

C

O

N

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

E

N

T

R

Y

I
N

T

E

R

V

I
E

W

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 
88



CONFERENCE

ENTRY
INTERVIEW

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 
89



L

E

A

G

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

R

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 
90



91



Date:

P.O. Box 1240  Cedar Falls, IA 50613
319.277.5636   319.277.5639 fax

www.leviarchitecture.com

©  Copyright
Drawings & specifications, ideas,

designs, & arrangements represented
are & shall remain the property of

the architect & no part shall be
copied or disclosed to others or

used in connection with any work or
project other than the specified

project for which they have been
prepared without the written consent
of the archtiect.  Visual contact with

these drawings & specifications shall
constitute conclusive evidence of
acceptance of these restrictions.

Revised:

C
:\
E

g
n

yt
e

\P
ri
va

te
\jd

e
m

m
e
r\

A
ct

iv
e
 P

ro
je

ct
s_

P
ri
va

te
\R

a
b

o
 A

g
ri
fin

a
n

c
e
\0

4
 -

 D
e
si

g
n

\C
A

D
\R

a
b

o
 A

g
ri
F

in
a

n
ce

.r
vt

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

8
 1

0
:1

2
:4

4
 A

M A1.1

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

R
A

B
O

 A
G

R
IF

IN
A

N
C

E

10/01/2018

E
n

te
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

e
re

MAIN FLOOR
0"

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

TOP OF WALL
17' - 4"

-

---

MAIN FLOOR
0"

8 9 10

TOP OF WALL
17' - 4"

MAIN FLOOR
0"

1234567

TOP OF WALL
17' - 4"

-

---

MAIN FLOOR
0"

8910

TOP OF WALL
17' - 4"

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

FRONT ELEVATION

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

EAST ELEVATION - OPTION A

1/8" = 1'-0"
3

SOUTH ELEVATION - OPTION A

1/8" = 1'-0"
4

WEST ELEVATION - OPTION A

PRECAST 250 SF

NICHIHA 124 SF NICHIHA 589 SF NICHIHA 301 SF

GLAZING 168 SF GLAZING 100 SF

GLAZING 81 SF GLAZING 83 SF GLAZING 85 SF GLAZING 118 SF

PRECAST 303 SF

GLAZING 85 SF

GLAZING 115 SF GLAZING 183 SF

GLAZING 33 SF ACM 39 SF GLAZING 33 SF ACM 35 SF

PRECAST 203 SF

PRECAST 8 SFPRECAST 5 SF

PRECAST 916 SF

NICHIHA 737 SF

GLAZING 70 SF GLAZING 70 SF GLAZING 70 SF GLAZING 84 SF GLAZING 84 SF

H.M. DOOR 24 SF

PRECAST 300 SF

NICHIHA 975 SF

GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF GLAZING 56 SF

ACM 108 SF (TOTAL OF
EAST/WEST ELEVATIONS)

ACM 106 SF

ACM 106 SF

GLAZING 18 SF (TOTAL OF
EAST/WEST ELEVATIONS)

GLAZING 52 SF

CORRUGATED
MTL. 36 SF

CORRUGATED
MTL. 36 SF

PRECAST 208 SF

GLAZING 22 SF

GLAZING 103 SF

GLAZING 30 SF
GLAZING 30 SF

PRECAST 4 SF

PRECAST 25 SF PRECAST 42 SF PRECAST 29 SF

PRECAST 4 SF

PRECAST 83 SF

GLAZING 35 SF

GLAZING 27 SF

H.M. DOOR 24 SF

GLAZING 70 SF GLAZING 70 SF

NICHIHA 649 SF

3'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

14'-4" 11'-4" 76'-6" 11'-4" 44'-0" 12'-0"

56'-0"

12
'-4

"

86'-0" 42'-6" 40'-9"

3'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

3'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

3'
-0

"
7'

-0
"

99'-4"

12'-0" 87'-8"

5'
-6

"

5'
-6

"

5'
-6

"

GLAZING 275 SF

NICHIHA 266 SF

NICHIHA 179 SF

Glazing          365 sf  =  20.3%
Nichiha          828 sf  =  46.0%
Precast          387 sf  =  21.5%
ACM              160 sf   =   8.9%
CMP                36 sf   =   2.0%
HM Door          24 sf   =   1.3%

ACM - Aluminum Composite Panels   
CMP - Corrugated Metal Panels
HM - Hollow Metal

West Materials

Glazing          518 sf  =  26%
Nichiha          975 sf  =  49%
Precast          300 sf  =  15%
ACM              160 sf   =   8%
CMP                36 sf   =   2%

East Materials

Glazing          378 sf  =  16.3%
Nichiha       1,003 sf  =  43.2%
Precast          916 sf  =  39.5%
HM Door          24 sf  =    1.0%

South Materials

Glazing       1,359 sf  =  42.3%
Nichiha       1,014 sf  =  31.5%
Precast          769 sf  =  23.9%
ACM                74 sf   =   2.3%

North Materials

ACM - Aluminum Composite Panels   
CMP - Corrugated Metal Panels

ACM - Aluminum Composite Panels 

HM - Hollow Metal

ORANGE
ACM PANELS

NICHIHA METALLIC SERIES
RIBBED PANELS, GUNSMOKE

NICHIHA METALLIC SERIES
RIBBED PANELS, GUNSMOKE

ORANGE ACM PANELS

WHITE ACM PANELS

NICHIHA METALLIC SERIES
RIBBED PANELS, GUNSMOKE

NICHIHA METALLIC SERIES
RIBBED PANELS, GUNSMOKE

ORANGE ACM PANELS

WHITE ACM PANELS

NICHIHA METALLIC SERIES
RIBBED PANELS, GUNSMOKE

92



4'-0"4'-0"

6'-0" 4'-10" 4'-10" 5'-0"

A1.1

3

1234567

8

9

101
' -

 6
"

4
8
' -

 6
"

4
8
' -

 6
"

1
' -

 6
"

1' - 6" 27' - 10" 27' - 10" 27' - 10" 27' - 10" 27' - 10" 27' - 10" 1' - 6"

---
-

MENS

WOMENS
JAN.A/V

MOTHER

WELLNESS

DATA

MECH.

COPY/PRINT

MARKETING LANDLOR STOR.

H
A

L
L

W
A

Y

TRAINING

CAFE

COPY/PRINT

CONFERENCE ROOM

APPRAISAL OFFICE

CRT OFFICE

HUDDLE
LEAGAL OFFICE

HR OFFICE
HUDDLE

HUDDLE CRT OFFICE

FOCUS FOCUS

FOCUS

FOCUS

CRT OFFICE

CRT OFFICE

H
U

D
D

L
E

FOCUS

FOCUS

OFFICE

OFFICE

H
U

D
D

L
E

CONFERENCE

ENTRYINTERVIEW

OPEN COLLAB.

OPEN COLLAB.OPEN COLLAB.

BENCH/WARDROBE

BENCH/WARDROBE

BRANDING BRANDING BRANDING

F
IL

E
 S

T
O

R
A

G
E

WINDOWS WITH RATED FILM

FOCUSFOCUS

BUILT-IN CASEWORK W/ TRASH DRAWERS
10" BUILT-IN CREDENZA 

W/ TRASH DRAWERS

C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 P

A
T

IO

3
2
' -

 0
"

11' - 7" 15' - 10" 2' - 6 3/4" 11' - 6" 14' - 8" 4' - 0" 3' - 4" 4' - 0" 16' - 11" 1' - 2" 13' - 11" 10' - 0" 1' - 6" 18' - 10" 2' - 3" 11' - 11" 4' - 0" 3' - 4" 4' - 0" 11' - 6" 3' - 2"

1
0
0
' -

 0
"

170' - 0"

14' - 8" 2' - 7 1/4" 10' - 0" 3' - 10" 10' - 0" 3' - 0 1/2" 10' - 0" 31' - 11 1/2" 43' - 1 1/2" 3' - 8 1/4" 12' - 0" 3' - 1" 3' - 4" 3' - 1" 12' - 0" 3' - 7"

3
' -

 6
 4

7
/6

4
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 1
1
 9

/1
6
"

8
' -

 0
"

4
' -

 8
 1

1
/3

2
"

4
' -

 9
 3

/4
"

8
' -

 0
"

4
' -

 2
"

3
1
' -

 4
"

1
0
' -

 1
"

2
' -

 8
"1

' -
 4

"2
' -

 8
"

1
4
' -

 3
"

2
' -

 8
"1

' -
 5

"2
' -

 8
"

8
' -

 7
"

1
0
' -

 4
"

3
' -

 0
"

6
' -

 3
"

2
' -

 9
"

3
' -

 3
"

1
0
' -

 0
"

2
' -

 6
"

1
0
' -

 0
"

5
' -

 7
"

Date:

P.O. Box 1240  Cedar Falls, IA 50613
319.277.5636   319.277.5639 fax

www.leviarchitecture.com

©  Copyright
Drawings & specifications, ideas,

designs, & arrangements represented
are & shall remain the property of

the architect & no part shall be
copied or disclosed to others or

used in connection with any work or
project other than the specified

project for which they have been
prepared without the written consent
of the archtiect.  Visual contact with

these drawings & specifications shall
constitute conclusive evidence of
acceptance of these restrictions.

Revised:

C
:\
E

g
n

yt
e

\P
ri
va

te
\jd

e
m

m
e
r\

A
ct

iv
e
 P

ro
je

ct
s_

P
ri
va

te
\R

a
b

o
 A

g
ri
fin

a
n

c
e
\0

4
 -

 D
e
si

g
n

\C
A

D
\R

a
b

o
 A

g
ri
F

in
a

n
ce

.r
vt

1
0

/5
/2

0
1

8
 1

:3
0

:1
2

 P
M

A1.0

P
L

A
N

R
A

B
O

 A
G

R
IF

IN
A

N
C

E

10/05/18

E
n

te
r 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 h

e
re

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

MAIN FLOOR 

93



M

E

N

S

W

O

M

E

N

S

J

A

N

.

A

/
V

M

O

T

H

E

R

W

E

L

L

N

E

S

S

D

A

T

A

M

E

C

H

.

C

O

P

Y

/
P

R

I
N

T

M

A

R

K

E

T

I
N

G

L

A

N

D

L

O

R

 
S

T

O

R

.

H

A

L

L

W

A

Y

T

R

A

I
N

I
N

G

C

A

F

E

C

O

N

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

 
R

O

O

M

A

P

P

R

A

I
S

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

L

E

A

G

A

L

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

R

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

C

R

T

 
O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

O

F

F

I
C

E

O

F

F

I
C

E

H

U

D

D

L

E

C

O

N

F

E

R

E

N

C

E

E

N

T

R

Y

I
N

T

E

R

V

I
E

W

F

O

C

U

S

F

O

C

U

S

ENGINEERING & ENVIRONMENTAL

Ó 

·

·

·

94



95



Rabo AgriFinance
Technology Park     Cedar Falls

TRASH ENCLOSURE

96


	Top
	1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes: October 10 and October 24, 2018
	10-24-2018 P&amp;amp;Z Minutes FINAL.docx

	2. Park Ridge Estates Preliminary Plat
	1_P&amp;amp;Z staff report for park ridge estates preliminary plat on 11-8-18.docx
	2_ZONING_LOCATION MAP.pdf
	3_11-7-18 Park Ridge Letter - With City Comments.pdf
	4_Park Ridge Estates Subdivision Prel Plat Set 11-7-2018.pdf
	5_PRE Deed of Dedication.pdf
	6_stahl drainage photos 9-12-18..pdf
	7_neighborhood petition 9-22-18.pdf
	8_Stahl email 10-24-18.pdf
	9_2018-10-24 ltr to Stahl.pdf
	10_CO 80-165.pdf
	11_1980 Easement.pdf
	12_1992 Modification Agreement.pdf
	13_2018 inspection report -Lakewood Hills Dam - IA02079.pdf

	3. Central Business District Overlay Design Review – Lark Brewing
	1 P&amp;amp;Z Staff report-Lark Brewing.docx
	2. Lark Brewing Letter 11.2.18.pdf
	3. Lark Brewing Rear Elevations 11.2.18.pdf

	4. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Design Review – Icon Donut
	1.P&amp;amp;Z Staff report-917 W 23rd Street Icon Donuts.docx
	2. letter of intent to the city.pdf
	3. Letter from building owner.pdf
	4. images of proposed work.docx

	5. Business Research District Site Plan Review – Rabo AgriFinance
	1_Rabo AgriFinance Staff Report to P&amp;amp;Z on 11-14-18.docx
	2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf
	3_Rabo Project Description.docx
	4_Rabo Site Plan.pdf
	5_Rabo Building Rendering-Elevations.pdf
	6_Rabo Landscape Plan.pdf
	7_Rabo Monument Sign.pdf
	8_Rabo Trash Enclosure.pdf

	Bottom

